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1. Name of Property

historic name Visitation Academy

other names/site number Maryweod Academy (preferred); Evanston Civie Center

2. Location

street & number 2100 Ridge Avenue . Not for publication
City or town Evanston _wlemity
state  Hlinois code 1L county Cook code 831 zip code 60201

3. State/Federal Agency Certification Y
Az the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation At of 1966, as amended, 1 hereby certify that this Zﬁ&
nomination  request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for regisiering properties infhe National
Register of Historic Places and meets ihe procedural and prefessional requirements set forth in 36 CER Part 60. In my opinion, the
property gNpeets _, dgous not meet the Nutional Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant
natienafly ~ smmwidexlomliy, { _... Sce continuation sheet for additional comments.}
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Signature of certifying official Date

IHinois Historic Preservation Agency
Ntate or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. (___ See
continuation sheet for additional comments. )

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and burcau American Indian Tribe




Marywood Academy
Name of Property

Cook, THinois
County and State

4. National Park Service Certification

I, hereby certify that this property is:

___ entered in the National Register
_______ _ See continuation sheet,
____ determined cligible for the
National Register
. See continuation sheet,
___ determined not eligible for the
National Register

e Temoved from the National Register

_other {¢xplain}:

Signature of the Keeper

Date of Action

5. Classification

Ownership of Property
{Check as many boxes as apply)
____private
_X_ public-local
___ public-State
___ public-Federal

Category of Property
{Check only one box)
_x_ huilding(s)
__ district
. sne
. structure
___objeat

Number of Resources within Property

(Do not inctude previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Nencontributing

. __ buildings
______ S SIS
S _ structures
______________ o Objects

2 _ Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register

Name of related multiple property listing (
N/A

0

snter "N/A™ if property is not part of a multiple property listing.}




Marywood Academy Cook, Hlinois
Name of Property County and Siate

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
EDUCATION: school

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
GOVERNMENT!: City Halt

7. Description

Architectural Classification
{knter categories from instructions)

LATE 197 AND EARLY 20™ CENTURY REVIVALS: Georgian Revival
Materials (Enter categories from instructions)

Foundavon  LIMESTONE

Root ASPUHALT

Walls BRICK

other LIMESTONE

Narrauve Description (Deseribe the historic and current condition of the property on one or maore continuation
sheets))
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for
National Register listing)

x__ A Property is associated with events that have made a si gnificant contribution to the broad patterns
of our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons si gnificant in our past.
x C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a pe, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master. or possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack indivicual distinetion.
D Property has yiclded. or is likely to yield information important in prehistory or history.
Criteria Considerations (Mark X" in all the boxes that apply.}
Xx_ A owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes.
B removed from its original location.
C a hirthplace or a grave.
D a cemetery,
E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
F a commemorative property,
G less than 50 vears of age or achieved significance within the past 30 years,
Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)
Education
Architectuye

Period of Significance Education: 1908 - 1935: Avchiteciure: 1924
Signihicant Dates 1904, 1924

Stgniticant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above}
Cubtural Affiliation

Architect/Builder Schlacks, Henry (1901); Behlen &Sons (1924)/¥oley (1981); Byrne, Barry & Co.
(1924

Narrative Statement of Significance (Explain the sigmificance of the property on one or more continuation

shects))
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9. Major Bibliographical References

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS)
—_ preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has been requested,
« previously listed in the National Register
______ __ previously determined ¢ligible by the National Register
. destgnated a National Historic Landmark
__recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #
. Tecorded by Historic American Engineering Record #
Primary Location of Additional Data
—_ State Historie Preservation Office
______________ Other State agency
. Federal agency
__ Local government
- Limversity

Name of repository  Evanston Public Library, Evansten Historical Society

18, Geographical Data

Acreage of Property  Slightly over nine acres

Zone Easting Northing  Zone Easting Northing
I 16 442940 46356393 3 16 443158 4656236
2 16 423204 4656393 4 16 442940 4656230 -
__ See continuation sheet.

Verbal Boundary Description
(Liescribe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
tLxplam why the boundaries were sclected on a continuation sheet)
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© Name of Property County and State
11. Form Prepared By

namc/title Barbara Gardner

organization date  August 20058

street & number 1015 Dobson Street telephone 847-869-2824
city or town  Evanston state IL zip code 60202

Additional Documentation
Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 13 minute series) indicating the property’s location.
A sketch map for histeric districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional iems)

Property Owner
(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name  City of Evanston, Lorraine H. Mortan, Mayor

street & number 2100 Ridge Avenue telephone 847-806-2979
citv or town  Evanston state  IL Zip eonde 60202

Paperwork Reduction Act Statemnent: This information is being collected for applications 1o the National
Register of Historie Places to nominate properties for lsting or determine eli gibility for listing, to list properties,
and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required fo obtain a benefit in accordance with the
National Historie Preservation Act, as amended {16 U.5.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per
response including the time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and
reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form 10 the Chief,
Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.0. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and
the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washinaton, DC 20503,
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SUMMARY

The Marywood Academy presentdy Evanston Civic Center, 2100 Ridge Avenue, Fvanston,
(Cook Countv} lllinots, 1s a four-story Georgian Revival style building construcred in 1901
and 1924 of Luck and limestone. Located approximately 13 nules north of Chicago’s Loop,
Marywood Academy was designed by architect Henry | Schlacks for the Sisters of the
Visitation. Marywood Academy was originally built as a multi-function building. The first
two floors wete classrooms and all but one room on the third and fourth floots were
bedrooms used by the bosrding students and the nuns. 1¢is now being used by the City of
Evanston as its Civie Center.

DESCRIPTION

Marywood Academy is a four-story red brick and limestone [L-shaped building sited with
its front 1o Ridge Avenue. It is approximately 300 feet long across the front and 150 feer
on the south side. A ved brick power plant, still in its original location, is Jocated on the
south side of the lot, behind the academy. To the rear of the building are public parking
lots and a park. The south side of the building, which completes the short side of the L-
shape. is the original building which was called Visitation Academy. The building has a
compound plan with low-pitched, hipped roofs and hipped dormer windows located Just
above the roof™s cornice. Four chimneys are located in the central biock on the roof’s
ridge. Two prominent polygonal bay towers are located on either end of the central
block. The tower roofs are capped by a roofiop balustrade. A cross gable adorns the
center of the front fagade, The roof is slate, the cornice galvanized metal and the
foundation and trim are limestone. The insulated onc-over-one windows with limestone
caps have anodized metal frames.

East or Front Pagade, Marywood Academy building is a good example of Georgian
Revival architecture in the composition of the overall massing of the building, its
development of the tripartite arrangement of base, middle and top (cornice), and its
dignified employment of compound symmetry to establish an ordered and, therefore,
suttably civic primary facade, The primary facade on Ridge has an elongated
compositional syntax called an A B C D € B A syntax pattern.  The middie section (D)
is a cross gable. The primary entrance has a Georgian door surround employing Rontan
Porie pilusters. It is noteworthy for its refined architrave moulding around the perimeter
of the door. The archivolt, which claborates the arch clement, is set below the
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entablature. The entablature is articulated by triglyphs which are unusual in their detati:
the central two "glyphs" are rectangular cut; the outer two partial "glyphs" have a curved
head. The central bay of the fagade, crowned by a gable with returns on the eaves and
Himestone quoins along the sides, lends visual emphasis to a carved limestone lunette
pancl The lunette panel and returns on the eaves emphasize the verticality of the central
bay as a place of entry to the buiiding and for its civic presence consistent with similar
treatments on the facades of 18th century English structures. The ornamentation of the
panel 1s a book with torches and laurel which indicates learning and enlightenment.

in the sections nearest the center (C), the double windows have slender columns between
them, surmounied by hell capitals with tiny crosses, which provide support for the
Hmestone lintels. The limestone base has been textured in a banded pattern 1o better
capture effects of light and shadow, a process embraced by architects at the turn of the
19th/20th century 1o evoke the character of hand ool work from historic European
structures. The primary (comprehensive) entablature of the structure (at the third floor) is
Corinthian with modillion blocks supporting the cornice. The fifeze and cornice of the
primary entablature are crafted of galvanized metal, The balusters crowning the semi-
circular bays on the facade are Renaissance in style.

On the outer wings, there are quoins above the limestone base up to the band course
under the third loor. The band course goes across this section and wraps the bays and
ends at the central section in 4 line with the thin window sills. On the outer section, the
first floor windows are surrounded by quoins and the third floor windows have segmental
arches with keystones in limestone, developed as an architrave in relation to the metal
frieze und comice directly above. The segmental arches in the architrave, punctuated by
keystones, are a decorative treatment indicative of 18th century English architecture. The
steeply pitched roofs of the dormers and the balcony at the central bay also show English
influence. '

South Fagade, The soulh side of the building ncar the east fagade is the originagl 1900
butlding. It has a limestone base and traditional rectangular bay which is an American
treatment with some precedent in 18th century English architecture. The rear of the
building and the south end, behind the rubble stone wall has very little ornamentation,
There are no dours and 41 windows. The beli-capital columns between windows are
repeated here, The original section of the school has segmental arches compased of three-




NPS Form [0-900-a
OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

Unied States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section _7__ Page 3 Marywood Academy, Cook County, Hlinois

rowlock courses. The original section also has a rubble stone base. regulurly coursed,
rather than the finished limestone base of the east and north facades,

Rear or West Fagade. The rear fagade is quite plain compared to the front. The windows
on the original building have segmental arches, but those on the addition do not. The
columns with the bell capitals decorated with tiny crosses are also seen on this elevation,
The base on the original building has the regularly coursed rubble stonc base. The base
on the addition is square-cut limestone laid in a regular course,

North Fagude. This fagade is small in comparison to the other thce, being
approximately 54 feet wide. The base is of finished limestone and the first floor windows
have quoin surrounds. The sccond floor windows have limestone caps and the third floor
windows have segmental arches with keystones in limestone.!

Interior of Marywood Academy

Marywood Academy has four floors, a basement, and an attic. All of the hailways and
staircases have terrazzo floors and the office floors are all maple. The walls are plaster
and have wood baseboards and trim around the doors and windows.

The building bas cntrances on the cast (the main entrance} and west elevations that Jead
into the lobby. The lobby's ceilings are vaulted with dropped schoolthouse-style fixtures.
On the southwest corner is the central staircase with ornamental iron railings and
baluslrades.

A long corridor, ruming north to south, intersects the center of the lobby. The corridors
have wood baseboards and chair rails. The ceilings in the halls are dropped. Offices are
located off of the corridor.

The original building is perpendicular to the main building, resulting in an “L” shape. and
is located on the south side. It has a long corridor that runs cast and west and connects (o
the carridor of the main building in the southeast corner. There are several sets of ok
double doors with stained glass inserts with the ornamentation maiching that on the top
cutside pediment. Offices are aiso located off of the corridor, which terminates in  small

P homas Rojhoseh, Archstect
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vestibule with a staircase that provides access 1o all floors. The staircase is part of the
original building and has slightly different iron decoration than the staircase in the main
building.

The second floor, which is accessed by the stairs located on each side of the west end of
the lobby, has a similar floor plan to that of the first floor. A lobby space is centrally
focated in the main building and intersected by a long corridor. The rooms on this floor
are much larger than those on the first floor. The corridor in the ori ginal building
terminates into what are now the counci! chambers.

The third floor has a similar corridor pattern as the first two floors but lacks the central
iobby space in the center of the main building, The staircase in the center section is also
different, for there is only one set of dog-leg stairs, which are located in the northwest
corner. Many of the walls in these offices are tile. The fourth floor is almost identical to
the third. The ground floor also has the corridor pattern of the upper floors, but lacks the
lobby space and the stairway has a quarter turn with a landing.

Marywood Academy has sufficient inteprity for hsting in the National Register of
thistoric Places. The exterior, with the exception of the windows, has remained
unaltered. The original openings of the windows remain intact. The interior has also
recetved fow modifications to the rooms when the school was converted into the
Evanston Civie Center. The classrooms were converted into offices. The chapel on the
seeond floor was turned into the City Council chambers. The auditorium at the top of the
first floor stairs became the lunchroom. The fourth-floor rooms, mcluding the art room
with skyvlight are now the executive offices of the City Manager and major department
heads. There are a few rooms where the walls were moved slightly and a few where new
walls were added. Most of the walls and floors remained the same.  Some of the offices
on the third {loor are housed in what were original shower and bathroom. and the original
tile walls still remain. The area with the most change was the hasement level. The
hasement was mostly open and is now divided into offices.

Originally there was also a building that housed gymnasiums and a nalatorium, which
was torn down in the late 1970s. These were not physicallv connected to the academy.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Marywood Academy is locally significant under Criterion A for Education for iis
association with an important Roman Cathelic all-girl"s school, which provided its
students with an excellent education for seventy years. The academy, which occupies an
entire city block, stands out from the other parochial schools in Evanston. It was the
only parochial school that offered boarding, and it was not affiliated with a particular
church, The period of significance for Criterion A is from 1900, when the school was
established. until 1953, the fifty-year cutoff for significance for the National Register.
Marywood Academy also mects Criteria Consideration A since the property was owned
by a religious instilution at the time of its significance.

The academy is also eligible under Criterion C as a good local examplc of the Georgian
Revival style. It sits prominently in the middie of the block with nothing on cither side of
it on a main thoroughfare. It exhibits fine details drawn from Classical architecture. Tt
reflects the Classical ideal in its tripartite design of base, body and crown. It features a
two prominent polygonal bay capped by a rooftop railing. it features double hung
windows. The peried of significance for architecture is from 1900 when the ori ginal
building was constructed to 1924 when the main building was completed.

Education
HISTORY OF FVANSTON

For several hundred years through the first quarter of the nineteenth century, a succession
of Native American tribes, most recently several generations of Pottawatonsie, inhabited
the area that became Evanston. The Treaty of Prairie du Chien ( 1829}, the Indian
Removal law of 1830, and, following the Black [Tawk War of 1832, the Second Treaty of
Chicago (1833) hastened the removal of the Potawatomic and other tribes from
northeastern Hlinois and prepared the area for non-native settlement,

The platting of Chicago (1830) and its incorporation as a town {1833), the opening of the
Erie Canal in upstate New York (1825), the beginning of stagecoach service between
Chicago and Green Bay, Wisconsin. (1836} and the surveying and sale of land by the
federal government paved the way [or increased in-migration, The area known us Grosse
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Point that later became Evanston was first settled and developed by non-natives along the
western branch of the Green Bay Trail (the West Ridge, now Ridge Avenue). Other
settfers soon followed, building cabins along the West Ridge. A few settiers established
farms on the East Ridge (now Chicago Avenue) that was twenty feet lower than the West
Ridge.

in 1850, nine Chicagoans - Dr. John Evans, attorneys Grant (oodrich, Andrew J. Brown,
and Henry W. Clark. merchants Orrington Lunt, and Jabez K. Botsford, and Methodist
ministers Richard Haney, Richard K, Blanchard, and Zadoe Hall — decided to found a
university for "sanctified” (1.e.. Methodist) education in the Northwest Terriiories. In
1851, the lhinois fegislature chartered Northwestern University. Afler searching for a
suitable site. in 1853, the trustees purchased from Dr. John Foster more than 400 acres of
farmland in Ridgeville Township for a lakeshore campus and surrounding town. In 1854,
a plat of the town, subsequently named Evanston in honor of Dr. Evans, was filed in
Springfield,

Northwestern University opened its doors in 1853, as did its affiliated institution, Garrett
Biblical Institute. In the same year the Chicago and Milwaukee (later the Chicagoe and
North Western and now the Union Pacific) Railway began regular service, providing
convenient and rapid transpontation between Evanston and Chicago, 12 miles to the
south. The depot was located at Davis Strect. Also, i 1835, the state legislature amended
Northwestern's charter to exempt the university's property from taxation and to prohibit
the sale of liquor within a four-mile radius (the Four-Mile Limit) of the university
“cxcept for medicinal, mechanical, or sacramental purposes.” The following year the
North Western Female College opened.

As the population increased, new public needs had to be addressed:  reliable supply of
pure water. more schools, and better roads. Evanston grew from a small, rural town with
a population of less than 300 in 1854 (o a large suburb of 10,775 people. according to the
{890 census. To accommodate that growth, Evanston annexed adjacent lands, including
the incorporated villages of North Evanston (1874) and South Evanston (1 §92).
Organized activity in this period focused on the populated areas, while farming remained
the principal activity in the area that became northeast Evanston. Yet the governmental
changes and infrastructure improvements in the original town worked to determine the
vourse of development in northeast Evanston,
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Evanston was an unincorporated community from 1854 to 1863, when residents voted, 39
1o 8. to incorporate as a town with five elected trustees. Harvey B. Hurd was the first
president. Between 1860 and 1870, the population grew from 831 people t0 3,062, an
merease of 269%, according to census figures,

Initially Evanston’s growth and development was spurred by Northwestern University,
but the Chicago Fire of 1871 and the subsequent restrictive building regulations that
followed gave many residents cause to move outside of the city. Between 1870 and
1880, the population grew by 44%, from 3,062 people to 4,440, and the decade of the
1880s brought further improvements to Evanston. By 1879, the high schaol offered a
four-year course, In 1882, even with 2 $40.000 bond issue rider, Evanston ciiizens voted
411 to 147 1o establish a township high school.? Construction on the high school building
began in October 1882, and the high school building opened to classes in 1883,

The evolution of Evanston from a small, raral community o a city required profound
changes not only ins the way the community was run but also in the way its residents
responded to the changes. In the earliest vears, activity was concentrated in poputated
arcas of central Evanston and North and South Evanston, The people who founded
Evanston and its major institutions (Northwesters: University and Garrett Biblical
Institutey were Methodists, For several years the only Protestant church in town was the
Methodist church. and Methodist sensibilities — temperance, abolition, the personal guest
to improve oneself, a concern for others — prevailed.

Significant changes occurred in the decade of the 1890s. Evanston's population increased
by 169%, from 7.500 to 20,144 residents, including 3,450 living in South Evanston. Land
m the original village and in newly annexed South Evanston was filling with houses.

fn 1892, Bvanston annexed South Evanston and incorporated as a city with a mavor and
aldernien — two from each of six wards. The new city began issuing building permits in
October 1892 and renumbered the entire street system in 1893,

“Clarence W, Hatceh, ed., History of Evansten Township High Schoal: Firgt Seventy-five Years. 1883-1038

poia
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By the early part of the twentieth century, it was obvious that, while unrestricted growth
might be very democralic, it was not good for a mature eity. The Evanston Small Parks
and Playgrounds Association, established in 1909, appointed architects Daniel Burnham,
Jr.. Dwight Perkins, Thomas Tallmadge, and Hubert Bursham to write Evanston's first
comprehensive plan. In particular, they drew up proposals for the parks, the lakefront,
and the downtown, claiming to have solved the downtown parking problemns "for all
lime.” More importantly, the plan urged the enactment of a comprehensive zoning
ordinanee.

As tand became scarcer and construction costs began 1o vise, developers in Evanston
promoted the apartment house as a cost-efficient way to provide needed housing. The
proliferation of apartment houses in those early vears caused single-family homeowners
to become very concerned about property values. The result was a series of restricted
residence ordinanees thal forbade the construction of apartment houses or the conversion
of houscs to multifamily dwellings. City Council or two-thirds of the owners on 4 street
could create a restricted residence district. While the ordinances were not only inadequate
to solve the problem and were probably unconstitutional, they did speed the Process
toward the enactment of a sound zoning ordinance in 1921, the first in Ilinois. The first
land-use designations were quite simple, based on the predominant existing use. After the
pussage of the zoning ordinance, apartment construction rose sharply in the areas
designated for multifamily buildings.

By the mid-1920s, Evanston was a mature city with paved streets, an extensive sewer
system, an excellent water filtration plant and pumping station, an active public
transportation system, viable businesses. and a well-established school system. Evansion
was acknowledged to be ahead of other lake towns in sanitation facilities, with the only
water fiitration plant on the lake, and one of the few lake communities with satisfaclory
garbage disposal facilities.

1 1926, at the peak of the building boom, 1370 building permits were issucd lotaling
$13.825,670. These included 326 family dwellings and 102 apartment houses of various
$1268.
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The History of Catholic Education in the United States

"The greatest religionus fact in the United States to-day”, writes Archbishop Spalding in
1910, "is the Catholic School system. maintained without any aid by the people who love
it".? The vastness of the system: may be pauged by the fact that it comprised over 20,000
teachers. over 1,000,000 pupils, represented $100,000,000 worth of property; and cost
over $15,000.000 annually. This system grew up from humble beginnings. Its growth
kept pace with the growth of the Church. The oldest schools in the present territory of the
United States were the Catholic schools founded about 1660 in the Spanish colonies. The
French colonies, 1oo. had their schools as 4 regular part of the civil and religious scheme
of colonization and civilization. Catholic educational work in the Thirteen Colonics dated
from the arrival of the Catholic colony in Maryland. The first regularly established school
in Maryland dated from 1640. As the condition changed {from that of a missionary
country to that of a country regularly provided with a fixed ecclesiastical organization,
the schools came to be recognized as a function of organized parish work. In the Spanish
and I'rench colonies the school, like the Church, looked to the State for support. In the
Fnglish colonies there was also State support of denominational education, but whether
the Catholies could or could not secure a share of the pubiic funds depended on local
conditions. When the States adopted their constitutions. they did not introduce any
change in this respect. It was "the gradual rise of dissentient religious bodies in the
celonies and States due fo the influx of immigrants and other causes that brought about
important changes which led to the gstablishment of 2 'non-sectarian’ system of schools."*
In many instances. Catholics in the West and even in Massachusetts and New York
obtained funds from the State for the support of their schools, as the Episcopalians and
Presbyterians did for theirs.

The attitude of the hierarchy of the United States towards the problem of clementary
education was consistent from the beginning. At first Bishop Carroll, in the days
immediately following the Revolution, entertained the hope that Catholics might unite
with their non-Catholic fellow-citizens in building up a system of education that would
be mutually satistactory from the religious point of view. Soon, however, he realized that

1 atholic Encrelopedia, Volume NV, Robert Appletss Co, 1972 Oaline Edition by K Kaghr, 2003
hop, 2w e wadvent Lergdeathen/ 13534h him

fBurns, e Catholic Schos! Svyelem i the Unired Stares”, p. 3590
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that hope was futile. After the First Catholic Synod he addressed (1792) a pastoral letter
to the Catholics of the country, in which he emphasized the necessity of a "pious and
Catholic education of the young to insure their growing up in the faith.” and expressed
the hope that the graduates of the newly-founded College of Georgetown would, on
returning to their homes, be able "to instruct and guide others in local schools.” Thus the
plan of organizing separate Catholic schools was inaugurated. The First Plenary Councii
of Baltimore (1829) declares: "We tudge it absolutely necessary that schools should be
¢stablished. in which the young may be taught the principles of faith and morality, while
being instructed in letters.” The Second Council (18321 rencwed this enactment and
entered into the details of organization, The Third Plenary Council of Baltimore (1884)
devoted very careful consideration to the subject of elementary schools and decreed in
explicit terms the obligation of establishing a parochial school in every parish within rwo
vears.”

The era of religious freedom ushered in by the Revolution resulted in the muitiplication
of Catholic educational institutions of every kind. Colleges were founded at Georgetown
and Mount St. Mary's, and plans were framed for the development of Catholic education
on a larger and more systematic scale. Fathers Badin and Nerinckx in Kentucky, and
Father Richard at Detroit, were energetic and farseeing educational pioneers. Religious
teachers for the schools also began to appear. Alice Lalor opened a schoo! at Georgetown
in 1799, which became the mother-house of the Visitation Sisters in the United States,
Muother Seton established her community at Emmitsburg in 1809; Father Nerinckx
founded the Sisterhood of Loretto in Kentucky two years later, and about the same time,
Father David organized the Sisters of Charity of Kentucky. From this time until about the
year 1840 there was a slow but selid Catholic educational growth throughout the eastern
half'of the country. with the steady increase of the Catholic population.

About the year 1840 a new period of school growth began, with the influx of the great
streams ol immigration from Germany and Irefand. During the vears 1840-60, twice as
muny dioceses were organized as the number existing at the beginning of this period, and
the heads appointed for these new dioceses were as profourkily convinced of the
necessity of Catholie schools as had been the great bishops of the earlier periods, "The
schoot alongside the church” was everywhere the accepted educational maxim, The result
was that the two hundred parish schools existing in the country in the year 1840 were
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multiplied several times over before the beginning of the Civil War. The problem of
providing teachers for the new schools was generally solved by an appeal to the existing
religious communities of Europe. Many of these sent colonies to America, and so rapid
was the growth of these colonies that their members, within a {ew vears, outnumbered
those of the weaching communities previously cstablished in the country. Most of these
new bodies. toe, became independent of the parent organmizations. The greater number of
the teaching communities now in the United States traced their American origin to the
little pioneer bands that crossed the occan to take charge of schools for the children of the
trish and German immigrants. -

1he total number of parish schools in the United States, according 1o the "Catholic
Directory® of 1910, was 4.845, with an attendance of 1 237,251, The total number of
pupils in Catholic educational instimtions of all kinds the same vear, Including colleges,
academics, industriat, reformatory, and charity schools, was 1,450,488,

On the basis of an average of forty pupils (o 4 teacher, the above figures imply that there
were about 31,000 teachers engaged in the parish schools of the United States in 1910,
Fally nine-tenths of those belonged to religious institutes. The proportion of lay teachers
to religious varied greatly with locality. In certain districts the lay teachers were very
numerous; In most of the dicceses, however, they constituted a small fraction of the
whole number. The number of male teachers was also relatively small, amounting 10 not
more than one-fifteenth of the total. The religious teachers were divided among two
hundred and seventy-five distinct teaching bodies, including independent convents as
well as congregations or orders. There were eleven teaching brotherhoods. Many of the
refigrous organizations had less than one hundred members, others had several thousand.
The fargest, the School Sisters of Notre Dame. had ncarly four thousand religious
members. The work of some was limited 1 a single diocese. while others had schaols
and branch establishments scattered through a large number of states. As a rule, the
teaching orders extended their work wherever opportumty offered, regardless of state or
diocesan boundaries. In 1910 there were twenty-four independent establishments of the
Benedictine Sisters, twenty of the Dominicans, twenty-two of the Franciscans, twenty-
two of the Sisters of St. Joseph, fortv-six of the Sisters of Mercy, eighteen of the
Ursulines. and twenty of the Visitation Sisters. By 1910, there were 937 sisters who
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taught 20.000 children in 68 parochial schools.” The mother-houses or central
establishments of these communitics were generally Jocated in the United States, The
mother-house for the Sisters of Providenee is in St Mary’s of the Woods, Indiana. ‘They
operated in 21 different states,

[n the Chicago arca the Dominican Sisters, Sisters of Visitation, Benedictine Sisters and
Sisters of Providence were the main edueators of Catholic children. The Benedictine
Sisters opened St. Scholastica Academy for girls in Chicago in 1907 which is still in
existence and St. George High Schoal fur boys in Evanston which closed in the late
1970s. The Dominicans came to St Mary’s in Evanston in 1874 and, much later, they
opened Regina Dominican in Wilimette in 1958, The Catholic elementary schools in
bvanston which fed into the high schools were S1. Mary’s which opened in 1874 and was
operated by the Dominican sisters, St. Nicholas which opened in the late 1880s,
Ascension of our Lord School which opened in 1913 and operated by the Felician sisters,
and St. Athanasius which opened in 1923. It is not known which sisterhood operated St.
Nicholas and St. Athanasius. Two of the four elementary schools, St. Athanasius and St.
Nicholas, now known as Pape John XXIH, are still in existence. Ascension of Qur Lord
closed in 1971 and St. Mary™s merged with St, Nicholas in 1986. Each of these schools
had about 350 students at their peak enrollment.

The curriculum of the parish school comprised eight elementary grades. There was a
class in catechism daily, and Bible history was also 1aught several times a week. In the
singing-class, devotional hymns were used. and the school-sessions wete opened and
closed hy prayers or brief devotional exercises. Quiside of these religious instructions and
practices, the curriculum of the Catholie parish school did not differ much from the
curriculum of the corresponding public school, except that there is a stronger tendency in
the former to emphasize the importance of those branches that are commonly designated
as "the Three R's.” '

The History of Marywood Academy

Visitation Academy opened in 1900 under the divection of the Visitation Sisters. It was
built o accommodate 200 pupiis - 100 day students and 100 boarding students. plus the
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nuns. The school included grades 1 - 8, u four-vear high school, a two or threc-year
commercial course, and one or two years of post-graduate courses. The Visitation sisters
believed in the characteristics of will and character. In a constantly serene and maternal
atmosphere, the child learned self-denial at an early age, a sense of duty, and a
responsibility to God for every action.

InJune of 1913, the school was sold w the Sisters of Providence. The first vear the name
and ourse schedule were relained, but Jater the name "Marywood” was substituted.
retlecting its connection with Saint Mary-of-the-Woods, The first year under the Sisters
of Providence enroliment was about 70 plus eight sisters. The school was granted a
charter in April 1917 and incorporated by the State Levislature under the title Marywood
school for Girls. From about 1920, courses were limited to the grade school and the four-
vear acadenue high sehool.

In 1921, a 2-story gym and natatorium plus a power house and coal room were built on
the property. 1t is not known whether the gym and natatorium were built as a result of an
increased cmphasis on physical education. or whether the school simply received
sulticient funds to build them.  These were also designed by Henrv J Schlacks. The
addition, which was added in 1924, was designed by Bolilen and Sons of Indianapolis,

By 1928, envoltment had grown to 340 students. During the 1930x there was a decline in
the number of students attending the academy because of financial pressures of the
Depression. The number of sisters increased or declined as the enroftment did. There
were also sisters who taught elsewhere whe lived at Marvwood.

I 1942, errollment was 230-300 students. The school was remodeled. with the entire
second floor devoted Lo high school classes, The first floor contained the assembly hall,
chapel and music depurtment. In September 194350 was decided 1o discontinue
kindergarten and tirst grade because of low enrollment. By 1947, the school hecamic
stricty a hivh school,

In 1938, during thetr 44th vear, the schoo! was showeased in the Fvansion Review. Sister
Colette. the school principal. wrote a piece deseribing the purpose of the school, The
motto of Marywood "Virtus eum Scientia” {Virtue with Knowledoe) was emphasized.
VO-95% of the graduates were colfege bound. At that time (here were S2§ garls enrolled
which included 60 resident students. Most students came from Chicago and the northern
stiburbs, but there were students from downsiate IHinois, Indiang. Florida, 1ouisiana,
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Michigan, Wisconsin, Nicaragua, Bl Salvador, Venezuela, and Ausiria. Sister Collette
states, "Long an Evansion landmark, cur abservatory 1ower suguests an element of
strength and vision symbolic of ideals whose realization deperdds largely upon ‘now’.
Students are expected to become aniculate Catholic citizens. efficient career wamen,
suceessfut homemakers and mothers of tamorrow and they are developing today.™

Sarvwood had an advanced curriculum, which included science, Japanese. and Chinese.
In Getober of 1961, 14 top science students began weekly science seminars of instraction
bl seientific concepts. methods and applications. Topics included hiology, chemistry.
physics, mathematics and medicine. There were abways Marywood students participating
at the [Hinois state science fairs. having competed against boys and girls schools at the
loweer level,

By the 1963-63 school term, enrollment was at its highest - 332, By January 1970,
hoveever, financial problems, cnrollment decreases, and a decrease in refigious personnel
made it necessary to close Marywood. The fust class graduated in 1970, A few of the
sisters staved on o Hve there unti} the building was sold to the City of Evanston.”

Archilecture

Georgian Revival is sometimes referred (o as Colonial Revival (1870-1920). The English
Creorgian style was the must prevalent type of Colonial buildings, but certainly not the
only one.

Early examples of Colonial Revival were rarely historically correct copies but werg
instead free interpretations with details inspired by colonial precedents. During the first
decade of the twentieth eentury, Colonial Revival fashion shified toward carefully
researched copies with more correct proportions and details. This was encouraged by new
tmethods of printing that permitted wide dissemination of photographs in books and
periodicals. In 1898 The dmerican Architect and Burlding News began an extensive
series called "The Georgian Period: Being photographs and measured drawings of
Colonial Work with text. This was followed in 1915 by the White Pine Series of
Architectural Monographs. which was dominated by photographs of colonial buiidings.

M FEeanstor Weniew, Fuanston 11, Cetober 9, 1958
© Sisters of Providense of Saint Many-of- the- Woods Archives, Indiaria,
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‘These and similar ventures led to a wide understanding of the prototypes on which the
Revival was based. Colonial Revival houses built in the years between 1915 and 1935
reflect these influences by more closely resembling carly prototypes than did those built
carlier or later.

The overall features of Georgian Revival may be described as symmeirical composition
enriched with classical detail. l1s identifving features include:

The front door. usually centered and capped by an claborate decorative crown
(entablature) supported by decorative pilasters {flattened columns). The main door is
the principal ornamental feature of the Greorpian facade. Usually there is a row of
small rectangular panes of glass beneath the crown, either within the door or in a
transom just above. This may also be fan shaped.

The cornice is usually emphasized by decorative moldings, most commonly with
woth-hke dentils

Louble hung windows

The windows are aligned horizontaily and vertically in symmetrical rows and are
sometimes found in groups of twos or threes.

Details such as quoins, symmetrical dormers, stone course bands, balustrades,
plasters and modillions

Typical roofs are side-gabled, gambrel, or hipped'

Marywood Academy is an excellent local exampie ol the Georgion Revival style. On the
exterior, its tripartite design, its use of brick and himestone, its representation of ¢lassical
details and ormamentation such as quoins, fan lights, stone course bands. balustrades,
pilasters, modillions and dormers, is artistically presented. Its classical themes are carried
into the interior public spaces, ereating a refined, dignified environment, even while
providing public spuaces for larger community events,

i ?‘\ii:;\*i{.”:v‘.ur. ]), 324
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Marywood Academy also compares quite favorably to another National Register
property. the George B. Dryden House, located at 1314 Ridge Avenue It, oo, is a large
building, but was built as a home. It was built sumewhat later and more strictly conforms
to the earlier Georgian style homes. Both buildings share many of the stylistic features of
the Georgian Revival style with the fanlight above the door, the symmetrical dormers,
entablature and other detailing. There are two other school buildings in Evanston that
represent the Georgian Revival style: Miller Schoo! and Noyes School, both desi gned by
Daniel Bursham. While these two buildings are beawtiful and significant, Marywood
Acacdemy has a grace und style that would almost seem unattainable in a building of this
size. 'The building serves as the focal point of a quict residential neighborhood,
characterized by 19" century dwellings, 1o the east, north and west, and the ensemble of
multi-family buildings to the south. Marywood Academy lends an air of di gnity and
prominence in its location, and establishes an important, unique, architectural presence
while meeting community needs.

Henry J. Schlacks, Architect {1868-1938)
1503 Schiller Building, Chicago 1L

Born in Chicago of German parents in 1868, Henry J. Schiacks studied at MIT,
apprenticed at the olfices of Adler and Sullivan, and eventually went on to become the
first Director of the Course of Architecture at the U niversity of Notre Dame. Schilacks
was a skilled practitioner. developer. and teacher of the American Gothic school of
architeeture pioneered by Raiph Adams Cram in the United States after the revivalist
example of Viollet-le-Duc in France and A. W. N. Pugin in England. Schiacks introduced
a German element into this school, going to Germany 1o study the churches of the
Moselle Valley and the work of Johannes Otzen of Berlin. What is more, Schlacks had
traveled extensively, immersing himself in European church architecture. notes historian
l:dward Kantowicr, who calls Schlacks the master of Catholic church architecture in
Chicago.'' i addition to learning the Gothic style he also became proficient in the
Roman Renaissance style, his favorite.

The Gothic Revival movement in which Schiacks participated moved counier to
the mainstream of Victorian architeeture and décor which was characterized by its diffuse
foci and illusionistic naturalism. The counter-cubtural aesthetics of the Gothic Revivai

U Ramrowics, Fdward BO9To Build the Cathiolic Cay,™ Chécage ooy, Fall 1983,
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movement led up to and inspired the Arts and Crafls movement. And the principles of
both movements profoundly influenced the incipient new Prairie School of architecture.

The historicist modes in which Schlacks worked did not simply replicate or imitate
traditional forms. Rathier these modes represented an evolving style in its own right and
with its own unique developments. Like other practutioners of American Gothic, Schlacks
re-combined the traditional architectural vocabulary into both bold and subtle
permutations of the older forms of the style. Asymmetry and pictorial windows are two
of these permutations, Schlacks' buildings punctuate the Chicago cityscape, stunning,
though neglected. examples of superb architecture,

By 1903 Schlacks had already built forty-nine ecclesiastical buildings including schools,
convents, rectorics. three hospitals, and an orphanage; during his fifetime he succeeded in
building a total of twelve tull-scale churches in the Chicago area alone. His largest
[inois church is St. Mary of the Angels which, curiously, is misattributed to other
architects in Lane’s Chicago Churches and Synagogues. According to Kantowicz, at least
five of his churches, St. Paul’s, St. Adalbert's, St. Mary of the Lake, St. John of God, and
St. ha’s qualify as masterpieces.

Henry J. Schlacks died in 1938 at the age of seventy, his reputation secure.

Examples of buildings designed by Henry J. Schlacks that are landmarks or are cited as
significant by the Commission on Chicago Historical and Architectural Landmarks
(CCHAL). Chicago, Hlinois include the following struetures. Descriptions are from the
original CCHAL Individual Resource Forms.

B il
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St Nicholas Church, Evanston IL
Style: Gothic Revival
Lvanston landmark

Saint Paul Church , 2234 South Hoyne
Uhicago 1L

1897-1899

Style:r Gothic

Saint Adalbert Church, 1656 West
17th Street, Chicago 11,

1912-1914

Style: Roman Renaissance

Saint lta Church, 5500 N. Broadway,
Chicago L

1924-1927

Style: French Gothic

Saint Mary of the Lake Chureh, 4200
N. Sheridan, Chicago IL

1913-1917

Style: Roman Renaissance

National Register

Saint Fdmund Church, 188 South Oak
Park Avenue, Quk Park, Hlinois 60302
1908-1910,

Stle: Lnglish Gothic

Saint Edmund School, 188 South Oak
Park Avenue. Quk Park, [Hinois 60302
1924

Swyle: French Gothie

St Antheny’s School and Convent, 500
~ 510 W 28 PL, Chicago

1914

Style: Renaissance Revival

St John of God Church, 1256 W 52 §1,
Chicago

1918

Style: Renaissance Revival

St Boniface Church, 1352 W Chestnut
St, Chicago 1L

1902

Style: Romanesque Revival

St Ignatins, 6547 N Glenwood Ave,
Chicago IL

1916

Style: Classical Revival

5t Joseph’s Rectory. 4821 S Hermitage
Ave, Chieago 1L

1903

Styvle: Renaissance Revival

Resurrection Church, 3132 W Fackson
Bivd, Chicago I

1916

Style: (lassical Revival

St Thomas of Canterbury Church,
4827 N Kenmore, Chicago |1
Styler Classical Revival
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St Martin Church, 5850 S rinceton

Ave, Chieago IL
1894
Style: Gothic Revival

St Henry's Catholic Church, 6346 N

Ridue Ave, Chicago 1L
1905

Style: Gothic Revival
National Register

St Henry’s School, 6327 N Hovne,
Chicago 1.

1929

Style: Guothic Revival

Queen’s Angels Catholic Church,

2338 W Sunnyside Ave, Chicago IL

14924
Style: Art Deco/Moderne

Bohlen & Sons, Indianapolis

St Veronica's Rectory, 3300 N
Whipple St, Chicago 11,

1912

Style: Gothic Revival

St Clara Church (St Gelasius), 6401 §
Woodlawn Ave, Chicago IL

1923

style: Renaissance Revival

National Register

St Peter Catholic Church, 8148 N
Karlov, Skokic L.

1916

Style: Renaissance Revival

Holy Name Catholic Church, 10% &
Clay Sts, Topeka Kansas

1924

Style: IHalian Renaissance

St Mary of the Angels, 1850 N
Hermitage Ave, Chicago II,
1913-1917

Style: Roman Basilica

Four generations of Bohlens practiced architecture in Indianapolis and the first is now
one of the nation’s oidest continuously operated architectural enterpriscs, Diedrich A
Bohlen founded DA Bohlen on April 10. 1853, Diedrich’s son. Oscar I Bohlen joined
his futher in 1884 and the firm became DA Bohlen & Son. Oscar Bohlen became one of
the first registered architects and registered engineers in Indiana, His registration number
was 27 Tle and his father designed the Indiana Dental College, Tomlinson Hall, and the
City Market in Indiznapolis, DA Bohlen died in 1890 and was credited with mtroducing
the German Neo-Gothie style to Indiana.
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After his father’s death, Oscar designed the Majestic Building (1896), the first and tallest
steel skeleton skyscraper west of the Alleghenies outside of Chicago. He also designed
the Indiana National Bank building (1895), the French Lick Springs Hotel {1898), the
Methodist Hospital (1901), St Francis Hospital (1903) and an addition to Union Station
{1903)

In 1910, Oscar’s son, August C. joined the firm. August was a coauthor of Indiana’s
original building codes. He designed the Stokely Brothers office building (1912) and the
Indianapolis Star-News Building (1924).

The fourth gencration of the Bohlen family, Robert, joined the firm in 1946. He and
August worked on ongoing projects and also designed the Empire Life Building in 1950.

Beginning with Diedrich Bohlen in 1858, the firm has designed all the butidings for the
Sisters of Providence throughout the United States with the relationship continuing 1o
today. The National Register of Historic Places lists more than 20 Bohlen projects.

Marywond Academy Today

Today, Marywood Academy serves as the civic center for the City of Evanston. To the
neighborhood that surrounds it, Marywood Academy is still an important building which
providvs screnity and quiet and play space in the rear park.

Marywood Academy exhibits excelient integrity on its exterior and its interior public
spaces. Alterations to the structure have been minimal and are reversible. All the interior
lights and doors that were removed are still on the premises, housed in the atiic.
Evervihing. except the roof is in excellent condition and all fis ornamentation is intact.
Landscaping is attractive and does not detract from the building or its architectural
details, The relationship of Marvwood Academy to other structures on Ridge Avenue
creates an urban coergy and a strong “sense of place” that is unique 1o that particular

block in the City of Evanston,
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Boundarv Description. Lots | through 18 and the 20 ft. vacated alley west and adjacent
0 Lot 1 and all of the vacated alley north and adjacent to Lot 10 in Academy subdivision
of Lot 19 in assessor’s subdivision of fractional Section 7 Township 41 North, Range 14,
East of the Third Principal Meridian, in Cook County, llinois.

Boundary [fustification The boundary includes the buildings and the land historically
associated with Marywood Academy.
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IMinois Historic

Preservation Agency

Voice (217) 782-4836
1 Old State Capito! Plaza » Springfield, Hlincis 82701-1812 - Teletypewriter Oniy {217) 524-7128

www.illinois-history.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: The Honorable Lorraine H. Morton, Mavor of the City of Evanston
Carlos Ruiz, Preservation Coordinator and Staff of the Evanston
Preservation Commission

FROM: Amy Easton, Assistant Coordinator, National Register and Survey /f' }{Zﬂ

DATE: September 6, 2005
SUBJECT:  Preliminary Opinion on Marywood Academy, 2100 Ridge Avenue

Maryvwood Academy, presently Evanston Civie Center, 2100 Ridge Avenue is eligible for
listing in the National Register of Historic Places. The academy is locally significant
sader Criterion A for 1ts association with education in the community and Criterion C for
its architecture. Marywood is imporiant for its use as a Roman Catholic girl’s school
which provided its students with an excellent education for seventy vears.

The Georgian Revival style academy, designed by Chicago architect Henry Schlacks,
was built in 1900 by the Visitution Sisters. Orignally built to accommodate two-hundred
students - one hundred boarding and one-hundred dayv students, the academy was sold in
1915 10 the Sisters of Providence and later renamed Marywood, after Saint-Marv-of-the-
Woods. Marvweod Academy maintaing sufficient integrity for Hsting in the National
Register. The period of significance for education is from 1900, the year it was built, until
1953, the fifty vear cutoff for significance to the Nationa! Register. The period of
stenificance for architecture is from 1900, the year it was built, until 1924, the year the
Georglan Revival addition was completed.




AGENDA
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Meonday, November 14, 2005
6:30 P.0L - 8:20 M.
EVANSTON CIVIC CENTER
Room 2200

L DECLARATION OF QUORUM

11 APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 23;_2{}{]5 MEETING MINUTES

111. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

(Pt

(P2)

{P4)

{(P5)

(P6)

>

Ordinanes 120-0Q-83 - Snecial Use and Major Yaviation request for a Tvpe 2
Restuuraut at 1511 Chicaeo

Consideration of the Zoning Board of Appeals recommendation to grant a special
use for a Type 2 restaurant in the WiHd Qats Store,

Ordinance 121-0-05 — Special Use and Maior Yariation request for a Duy

Care Center Expansion at 2200 Mauaia Street

Cansideration of the Zoniug Board of Appeals recommendation to grant 4 special
use and major variation for expansion of an existing duy care center at 2200 Main,

Ordinance 128-0Q-03 ~ Revision to a Planned Development st 11006 Clark
Constderation of the Plan Commission recommendation to grant a major
adjustment to an existing planned development for the Sienny Project.

special Use for an Autemobile Repair Exrablishment at 1233 Dodpe Avenue
Consideration of the Zoning Board of Appeals recommendadion to deny a special
use vequest o establish an autemobile repair facility at 1233 Dodge.

Major Variation regquest fur an Open Parking Space in the front vard at 2434

sherman
Cansideration of 3 major variation request heard by the Zoning Board of Appeals
for building lot coverage and an open parking space in the front vard.

24048 Main Street Resubdivision Plat

Coasideration of (the SPAARC recommendation to grant preliminary and final site
plan and appearance approval for a resehdivision piat at 2400 Main Street.

2100 Kidee Avenue (Marvwood Academy) — Nominaiion €o the Natienal
Register of Historie Places

Consideration of a recommendation from the Preservadion Commission to
the Hlinois Historic Site Advisery Conneit {JHSAC) that 2100 Ridge Avenue
{Marywoud Academy) nomination satisties the Natinnal Register criteria.




‘\7& ('8} 1623 Hinman Aveuuc {The Homestead) - Nomination to the Nationul

1V,

VI

V1i.

Revister of Historie Places

Consideration of a recomimendation from the Preservation Commission to
the Nlinois Historic Site Advisory Council (IHSAC) that 1623 Hinman
Avenue (The Homestead) nomination satisfies the National Register eriteria,

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

(PDI) Landmark Nemination - 2100 Ridge Avenue
Consideration of & recomumendation from the Preservation Commission to
designate 2100 Ridge Avenue sy a Local Historic Landmark, Request P&D
Commirtee to set a special mecting date {or this matter.

(rpy Items for Future Considerstion
COMMUNICATIONS
ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

ADJOURNMENT




Numkor, NHL, Action, Date, Mulliplc Name

ALRSKA, WRANGRLIL-FETEKBURG BORDUCH-UENSUS ARFR,

BAY O CHARLES W (Schoorner),

Middie Harbor, W Floaz, 371ip 2499,
Peversburg, 05000285,

LISTEDR, 2/06/06

CALIFORNIN, LOS ANGFRLES COUNTY,
U.4. Court Housc and Post Cffice,
317 N, SBpring St.,

Los Angeles, 06000001,

L1STED, 2/09/36

COLORADD, BOULDER COQUNTY,

Coloradoe Chautaugua,

900 RBaseline Rd.,

Aculder, O0ad0n179,

NATIONAL HISTORIC LANDMARK DRSIGNATED/LLISTED,

COTORATG, MOTEFAT CUCUNLY,

Castle Park Archeclogical Bistricl,
Address Restricted,

Minosaur viginity, 0600305%,
LISTED, 1/03/C6

COTORADD, PROWERS COUNTY,

Granacda Relocaticn Center,

23802 County Rad. FF,

firanada wvicinlly, 060001840,

NATTONAT HTSTORLIC LANUMAKK LESICNATEZECD/LISTED,

D&HO, TETON COUNTY,
Hollingshead HomesToad,

10 West 1200 M. lTelLon oy 2d.,
Tetonia vicinity, 0&0000302,
LLISTED, 2/09%/0¢6

TLLINGIS, COOK COUNTY,
Hensen, &nton, E., House,
TR1D 5. Ridgeland Ave.,
CThicageo, CSEOODD0OA,
LISTED, 2/08/06

TLLIKOISG, COO0x COUNTY,
Marywood Academy,

2100 Ridge Ave.,
Evanston, 060000357,
ILISTED, 2/0%/06

LTLLINOLS, JACKSON COUNTY,

2/10/06

2/10/046

Fuiler, R. Bucwxminsler, ond Anne Hewictt Dome Home,

407 5. Forest Ave.,
Carpendaleo, SE0s001:2,
L1sTEL, 2/09706

TLLTHNOTE, SHORLOY COINTY,
Wesrterveit Chriscian Churchk,
103 W, Main 5t.,

Wostorvaoly, DeQ0oa09,

TLISTEDR, 2/09/0

LR




